ROLE OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTION IN PROMOTING SAVING CULTURE AMONG STUDENTS: A CASE STUDY OF KWARA STATE POLYTECHNIC STUDENTS AND FIDELITY BANK, TAIWO ROAD, ILORIN

BY

ABDULLAHI HAFSAT JIMBA ND/23/BFN/PT/0021

SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND FINANCE, INSTITUTE OF FINANCE AND MANAGEMENT STUDIES (I.F.M.S), KWARA STATE POLYTECHNIC, ILORIN.

IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENT FOR THE AWARD OF NATIONAL DIPLOMA (ND) IN BANKING AND FINANCE

JULY, 2025.

CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that this project was carried out by **ABDULLAHI HAFSAT JIMBA** of Matriculation Number: **ND/23/BFN/PT/0021** in the Department of Banking and Finance, Institute of Finance and Management Studies, Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin for the Award of National Diploma (ND).

MR. BABATUNDE A.R.	Date
roject Supervisor	
ЛR. JIMOH I.	Date
roject Co-ordinator	
AR. AJIBOYE W.T.	Date
Head of Department	
External Examiner	Date

DEDICATION

I dedicate this project work to Almighty Allah who inspired me and directed my ways during my academic stay in the polytechnic.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All praise is due to Almighty God the Lord of universe. I praise him and thank him for giving me the strength and knowledge to complete my ND programme also for our continued existence on the earth.

I appreciate the utmost effort of our supervisor, Mr. Babatunde A.R., whose patience; support and encouragement have been the driving force behind the success of this research work. He gave useful corrections, constructive criticisms, comments, recommendations, advice and always ensures that an excellent research is done. My sincere gratitude goes to Head of Department and other members of staff of the Department of Banking and Finance, Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin, for their constant cooperation, constructive criticisms and encouragements throughout the programme.

Special gratitude to my parents, husband, children who exhibited immeasurable financial, patience, support, prayers and understanding during the period in which I was busy tirelessly on my studies, special thanks go to my lovely husband.

My sincere appreciation goes to my friends and classmates.

ABSTRACT

This study examines the role of financial institutions in promoting a saving culture among students, with a focus on Kwara State Polytechnic students and Fidelity Bank, Taiwo Road, Ilorin. The research investigates the impact of financial institutions' initiatives on students' saving habits and financial literacy. The findings highlight the significance of financial education, accessible banking services, and tailored products in fostering a saving culture among students. The study's insights can inform strategies for financial institutions to promote financial inclusion and responsible financial behavior among young adults.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title P	Page	i
Certifi	cation	ii
Dedica	ation	iii
Ackno	owledgement	iv
Abstra	act	v
Table	of Contents	vi
СНАН	PTER ONE:	
1.0	Introduction	1
1.1	Background to the Study	1
1.2	Statement of the Problem	2
1.3	Objectives of the Study	3
1.4	Research Questions	4
1.5	Research Hypotheses	4
1.6	Significance of the Study	5
1.7	Scope of the Study	6
1.8	Limitations of the Study	7
1.9	Definition of Key Terms	8
СНАІ	PTER TWO:	
2.0	Literature Review	10
2.1	Conceptual Review	10
2.2	Theoretical Review	12
2.3	Empirical Review	14

CHAPTER THREE

3.0	Research Methodology	18
3.1	Research Design	18
3.2	Population of the Study	18
3.3	Sample Size and Sampling Techniques	19
3.4	Instrumentation and Data Collection	20
3.5	Method of Data Analysis	23
3.6	Validity and Reliability of Instruments	24
3.7	Ethical Considerations	25
СНА	PTER FOUR:	
4.0	Data Presentation, Analysis, Interpretation and Discussion of Findings	26
4.1	Data Presentation	26
4.2	Data Analysis	32
4.3	Data Interpretation	34
4.4	Discussion of Findings	35
СНА	PTER FIVE:	
5.0	Summary, Conclusion and Recommendations	39
5.1	Summary of Findings	39
5.2	Conclusion	40
5.3	Recommendations	42
5.4	Suggestions for Further Studies	45
	References	48

CHAPTER ONE

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background to the Study

The concept of saving has been fundamental to economic development and financial stability across nations. Saving culture refers to the habit and practice of setting aside a portion of current income for future use, which contributes significantly to capital formation and economic growth. In developing economies like Nigeria, the promotion of saving culture among all segments of the population, particularly students, is crucial for sustainable economic development.

Financial institutions, particularly commercial banks, play pivotal roles in mobilizing savings from various segments of society and channeling these funds toward productive investments. Banks serve as intermediaries between savers and borrowers, facilitating efficient allocation of financial resources in the economy. The relationship between financial institutions and saving behavior has been extensively studied, with evidence suggesting that the accessibility, affordability, and attractiveness of banking services significantly influence individuals' propensity to save.

Students represent a unique demographic group with distinct financial characteristics and challenges. Typically operating with limited and irregular income sources, students often face financial constraints that may discourage formal saving behavior. However, cultivating saving habits during the formative years of education can establish lifelong patterns of financial responsibility and contribute to long-term economic prosperity.

Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin, with its substantial student population, provides an excellent case study for examining how financial institutions can effectively promote saving culture among tertiary institution students. The institution's strategic location in Ilorin, a major commercial center in north-central Nigeria, offers access to various financial services, including those provided by Fidelity Bank.

Fidelity Bank Plc, established in 1988, is one of Nigeria's leading commercial banks with a strong commitment to financial inclusion and youth empowerment. The bank's Taiwo Road branch in Ilorin serves a diverse clientele, including students from various tertiary institutions in the area. Understanding how this institution contributes to promoting saving culture among students can provide valuable insights for policy formulation and strategic planning in the financial sector.

The Nigerian government has consistently emphasized the importance of financial inclusion and savings mobilization as key strategies for economic development. Various initiatives, including the National Financial Inclusion Strategy and the introduction of agent banking, have been implemented to increase access to financial services, particularly among underserved populations such as students and young adults.

1.2 Statement of the Problem

Despite the recognized importance of saving culture in economic development, there remains a significant gap in formal savings participation among Nigerian students. Several challenges contribute to this problem, including limited financial literacy, inadequate income sources, high transaction costs, and limited awareness of available banking products and services designed for students.

Many students at Kwara State Polytechnic operate with minimal financial resources, often relying on family support, part-time employment, or student loans to meet their educational and living expenses. This financial constraint, combined with limited understanding of financial management principles, often results in poor saving behaviors and increased vulnerability to financial shocks.

Furthermore, traditional banking services may not adequately address the unique needs and circumstances of student populations. High minimum balance requirements, complex account opening procedures, and expensive transaction fees can serve as barriers to students' participation in formal financial systems. The absence of tailored financial products and services specifically designed for students may also contribute to low savings rates among this demographic.

The problem is compounded by insufficient financial education and awareness programs targeting students. Many students lack basic knowledge about the benefits of saving, available banking products, and strategies for effective financial management. This knowledge gap limits their ability to make informed financial decisions and participate actively in formal saving schemes.

Additionally, the rapid advancement in financial technology and digital banking services presents both opportunities and challenges for promoting saving culture among students. While these innovations can potentially increase access to financial services and reduce transaction costs, their adoption among students may be limited by factors such as digital literacy, smartphone penetration, and internet connectivity.

1.3 Objectives of the Study

General Objective

The general objective of this study is to examine the role of financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students, with specific reference to Kwara State Polytechnic students and Fidelity Bank, Taiwo Road, Ilorin.

Specific Objectives

- 1. To identify the various products and services offered by Fidelity Bank to promote saving culture among students.
- 2. To assess the level of awareness of Kwara State Polytechnic students about banking products and services designed to encourage savings.
- 3. To examine the factors that influence students' decision to save with formal financial institutions.
- 4. To evaluate the effectiveness of financial literacy programs implemented by Fidelity Bank in promoting saving behavior among students.
- 5. To identify the challenges faced by students in accessing and utilizing banking services for savings purposes.
- 6. To determine the relationship between financial institution services and students' saving behavior.

7. To provide recommendations for enhancing the role of financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students.

1.4 Research Questions

- 1. What products and services does Fidelity Bank offer to promote saving culture among students?
- 2. What is the level of awareness among Kwara State Polytechnic students regarding banking products and services designed to encourage savings?
- 3. What factors influence students' decisions to save with formal financial institutions?
- 4. How effective are the financial literacy programs implemented by Fidelity Bank in promoting saving behavior among students?
- 5. What challenges do students face in accessing and utilizing banking services for savings purposes?
- 6. What is the relationship between financial institution services and students' saving behavior?
- 7. What strategies can be implemented to enhance the role of financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students?

1.5 Research Hypotheses

- \mathbf{H}_{01} : There is no significant relationship between financial institution services and students' saving behavior.
- \mathbf{H}_{02} : There is a significant relationship between financial institution services and students' saving behavior.
- \mathbf{H}_{03} : Financial literacy programs do not significantly influence students' saving behavior.
- \mathbf{H}_{04} : Financial literacy programs significantly influence students' saving behavior.
- H_{05} : There is no significant difference in saving behavior between students who use formal banking services and those who do not.
- \mathbf{H}_{06} : There is a significant difference in saving behavior between students who use formal banking services and those who do not.

1.6 Significance of the Study

This study holds significant importance for various stakeholders in the financial and educational sectors, as well as for policy makers and students themselves.

- For Financial Institutions: The findings of this study will provide valuable insights for banks and other financial institutions on how to develop more effective strategies for promoting saving culture among students. Understanding students' financial behavior, preferences, and challenges will enable financial institutions to design tailored products and services that better meet the needs of this demographic. This can lead to increased market penetration, customer acquisition, and long-term relationship building with future professionals and leaders.
- For Educational Institutions: The study will help educational institutions, particularly Kwara State Polytechnic, understand the financial behavior and needs of their students. This knowledge can inform the development of financial literacy programs, partnerships with financial institutions, and policies that support students' financial well-being. Additionally, the institution can use the findings to advocate for better financial services for their students.
- For Policy Makers: Government agencies and regulatory bodies can utilize the findings to formulate policies that promote financial inclusion and savings mobilization among young adults and students. The study's recommendations can inform initiatives aimed at increasing access to financial services, reducing barriers to formal savings, and promoting financial literacy education.
- For Students: The research will contribute to increased awareness among students about the importance of saving and the availability of financial products and services designed for their needs. This can encourage more students to participate in formal savings schemes and develop healthy financial habits that will benefit them throughout their lives.
- **For Academic Community:** The study will contribute to the existing body of knowledge on financial inclusion, saving behavior, and the role of financial institutions in promoting economic development. It will serve as a reference for

future research in related areas and provide empirical evidence from the Nigerian context.

For Society: Promoting saving culture among students contributes to overall economic development by increasing domestic savings, which can be channeled toward productive investments. A financially literate and savings-conscious population is essential for sustainable economic growth and stability.

1.7 Scope of the Study

This study focuses specifically on the role of financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students, with particular emphasis on Kwara State Polytechnic students and their relationship with Fidelity Bank, Taiwo Road branch in Ilorin. The geographical scope is limited to Ilorin, Kwara State, Nigeria, and the study population comprises currently enrolled students at Kwara State Polytechnic.

The temporal scope covers the period from 2020 to 2024, examining recent trends and developments in financial services and saving behavior among students. The study considers various aspects of financial institution services, including traditional banking products, digital banking services, financial literacy programs, and customer service delivery.

The research examines multiple dimensions of saving culture, including formal and informal saving methods, factors influencing saving decisions, barriers to accessing financial services, and the effectiveness of promotional strategies employed by financial institutions. However, the study does not extend to other financial institutions beyond Fidelity Bank or other educational institutions beyond Kwara State Polytechnic.

1.8 Limitations of the Study

Several limitations may affect the scope and generalizability of this study's findings:

- **Geographical Limitation:** The study is limited to one educational institution (Kwara State Polytechnic) and one bank branch (Fidelity Bank, Taiwo Road, Ilorin), which

- may limit the generalizability of findings to other institutions and locations in Nigeria.
- Sample Size Constraints: Due to time and resource limitations, the study focuses on a sample of 200 students, which, while statistically adequate, may not capture the full diversity of student experiences and perspectives within the institution.
- **Time Constraints:** The limited time frame for data collection may not allow for longitudinal analysis of saving behavior changes over extended periods.
- Access to Information: Some institutional data and internal policies of Fidelity Bank
 may not be readily accessible, potentially limiting the depth of analysis regarding the
 bank's strategies and their effectiveness.
- Response Bias: Students' responses may be influenced by social desirability bias, where respondents provide answers they believe are expected rather than their actual experiences and behaviors.
- **Financial Privacy:** Some students may be reluctant to disclose detailed information about their financial situations, saving habits, and banking relationships, which could affect the accuracy of collected data.
- Dynamic Nature of Financial Services: The rapidly evolving nature of financial technology and banking services means that some findings may become outdated relatively quickly.

1.9 Definition of Key Terms

- Saving Culture: The practice, habit, and mindset of consistently setting aside a
 portion of income or resources for future use, characterized by disciplined financial
 behavior and long-term financial planning.
- Financial Institution: Legally established organizations that provide financial services to individuals, businesses, and governments, including commercial banks, microfinance institutions, savings and loan associations, and other regulated financial service providers.

- **Financial Literacy:** The knowledge, skills, and understanding required to make informed financial decisions, including understanding of financial concepts, products, and services, as well as the ability to manage personal finances effectively.
- Banking Services: The range of financial services offered by banks and other financial institutions, including deposit accounts, loans, electronic banking, payment services, and advisory services.
- Student Savings Account: Specialized deposit accounts designed specifically for students, typically featuring reduced fees, lower minimum balance requirements, and benefits tailored to student needs.
- **Financial Inclusion:** The provision of accessible, affordable, and appropriate financial services to individuals and businesses, particularly those who have been excluded from or underserved by the formal financial system.
- **Digital Banking:** The provision of banking services through digital channels such as mobile applications, internet banking platforms, and electronic payment systems.
- Capital Formation: The process of building up capital stock through savings and investment, which contributes to economic growth and development.
- **Transaction Costs:** The costs associated with conducting financial transactions, including fees, charges, and time costs incurred when using banking services.
- **Formal Financial System:** The regulated financial sector comprising licensed financial institutions that operate under government oversight and provide standardized financial services.

CHAPTER TWO

2.0 LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Conceptual Review

2.1.1 Concept of Saving Culture

Saving culture encompasses the behavioral patterns, attitudes, and practices related to the systematic preservation of resources for future use. According to Keynes (1936), saving represents the difference between income and consumption, reflecting individuals' time preference and their willingness to defer immediate gratification for future benefits. The concept extends beyond mere money accumulation to include the development of financial discipline, planning capabilities, and risk management strategies.

Cultural factors significantly influence saving behavior across different societies. In many African contexts, traditional saving mechanisms such as rotating savings and credit associations have historically played important roles in resource mobilization. However, the integration of these traditional practices with modern financial systems remains a challenge in promoting formal saving culture.

The psychology of saving involves multiple factors including risk perception, time horizon, financial goals, and external influences. Behavioral economics research by Thaler and Benartzi (2004) demonstrates that individuals often exhibit present bias, preferring immediate rewards over larger future benefits, which can inhibit saving behavior. Understanding these psychological factors is crucial for financial institutions seeking to promote saving culture among different demographic groups.

2.1.2 Role of Financial Institutions in Economic Development

Financial institutions serve as crucial intermediaries in the economic system, facilitating the efficient allocation of resources from surplus units to deficit units. Schumpeter (1911) emphasized the importance of financial institutions in supporting economic development through credit provision and investment facilitation. Modern

banking theory extends this role to include savings mobilization, payment services, risk management, and financial advisory services.

The financial intermediation theory suggests that banks and other financial institutions exist to reduce transaction costs, manage information asymmetries, and provide liquidity transformation services. By pooling individual savings, financial institutions can provide loans for productive investments, thereby contributing to capital formation and economic growth.

In developing economies, financial institutions play additional roles in promoting financial inclusion and economic participation among previously underserved populations. This includes the provision of basic banking services, financial literacy education, and innovative products designed to meet the needs of low-income and young demographics.

2.1.3 Students as a Demographic Group

Students represent a unique demographic group with distinct financial characteristics, needs, and constraints. Typically characterized by limited and irregular income sources, students often rely on family support, part-time employment, scholarships, or student loans to finance their education and living expenses. This financial situation creates specific challenges and opportunities for promoting saving behavior.

Research by Hancock et al. (2013) indicates that students' financial behavior during their educational years often establishes patterns that persist into their professional careers. Therefore, promoting positive saving habits among students can have long-term benefits for both individuals and the broader economy.

The digital nativity of many students also presents opportunities for financial institutions to leverage technology in service delivery. Students are generally more comfortable with digital platforms and mobile banking services, which can reduce transaction costs and increase accessibility to financial services.

2.1.4 Financial Inclusion and Youth

Financial inclusion represents a key development priority globally, with particular emphasis on including young people in formal financial systems. The World Bank defines financial inclusion as ensuring that individuals and businesses have access to useful and affordable financial products and services that meet their needs and are delivered responsibly and sustainably.

Young people, including students, often face barriers to financial inclusion such as lack of credit history, insufficient documentation, limited income, and high transaction costs relative to their financial capacity. These barriers can perpetuate financial exclusion and limit opportunities for economic participation and advancement.

Successful financial inclusion initiatives for youth typically involve the development of appropriate products, simplified account opening procedures, reduced fees and charges, and comprehensive financial education programs. Digital financial services have emerged as particularly effective tools for increasing youth financial inclusion due to their accessibility and affordability.

2.2 Theoretical Review

2.2.1 Life Cycle Hypothesis

The Life Cycle Hypothesis, developed by Modigliani and Brumberg (1954), provides a theoretical framework for understanding individual saving behavior across different life stages. According to this theory, individuals aim to maintain stable consumption levels throughout their lifetime by saving during high-earning periods and dissaving during low-earning periods.

For students, the Life Cycle Hypothesis suggests that they are in a phase of negative savings, borrowing against future earnings to finance current consumption, including education expenses. However, the theory also implies that establishing saving habits during the student phase can contribute to better financial management in later life stages.

The application of this theory to student populations requires consideration of factors such as family financial support, expected future earnings based on educational qualifications, and the availability of credit markets. Financial institutions can leverage these insights to develop products that align with students' life cycle stage while encouraging positive saving behavior.

2.2.2 Permanent Income Hypothesis

Developed by Friedman (1957), the Permanent Income Hypothesis suggests that individuals base their consumption and saving decisions on their expected long-term income rather than current income levels. This theory has important implications for understanding student saving behavior, as students may have low current income but high expected future earnings.

The theory suggests that students might be willing to save small amounts if they perceive their education as an investment that will lead to higher permanent income. Financial institutions can capitalize on this by offering products that link current small savings with future financial benefits, such as preferential loan rates or graduation bonuses.

However, the theory also highlights the importance of managing students' expectations about future earnings and helping them develop realistic financial plans based on their chosen career paths and economic conditions.

2.2.3 Financial Intermediation Theory

The Financial Intermediation Theory explains the existence and role of financial institutions in the economy. According to this theory, financial institutions exist to reduce transaction costs, manage information asymmetries, provide liquidity transformation, and offer risk management services.

For student populations, financial intermediation theory is particularly relevant in understanding how banks can reduce the costs and risks associated with saving and financial management. By pooling student savings, banks can offer services that would be too expensive for individual students to access independently.

The theory also emphasizes the importance of trust and reputation in financial relationships. Building trust with student customers can lead to long-term relationships that benefit both the students and the financial institutions as students transition into higher-earning professionals.

2.2.4 Technology Acceptance Model

The Technology Acceptance Model (TAM), developed by Davis (1989), provides insights into how individuals adopt new technologies, including digital banking services. The model suggests that technology adoption is influenced by perceived usefulness and perceived ease of use.

For student populations, who are generally tech-savvy, the TAM suggests that digital banking services can be effective tools for promoting saving culture if they are perceived as useful and easy to use. This has important implications for financial institutions seeking to engage student customers through mobile banking, online savings platforms, and other digital financial services.

The model also emphasizes the importance of user experience design and customer education in promoting the adoption of new financial technologies among students.

2.3 Empirical Review

2.3.1 International Studies

Several international studies have examined the relationship between financial institutions and saving behavior among young people and students. Lusardi et al. (2010) conducted a comprehensive study across multiple countries and found that financial literacy education significantly improves saving behavior among young adults. The study demonstrated that countries with stronger financial education programs tend to have higher youth savings rates.

In the United Kingdom, Furnham (1999) studied the financial behavior of university students and found that students who had access to student-specific banking products were more likely to develop positive saving habits. The study also revealed that parental influence and peer effects significantly impact student financial behavior.

A study by Warwick and Mansfield (2000) in Australia examined the effectiveness of different banking products in promoting saving among university

students. The research found that accounts with automatic savings features and goal-setting tools were more effective in encouraging regular saving behavior compared to traditional savings accounts.

Research by Avard et al. (2005) in the United States focused on the impact of financial literacy programs on college student debt and saving behavior. The study found that students who participated in financial education programs were more likely to have emergency savings and less likely to accumulate excessive debt.

2.3.2 African Context Studies

Studies within the African context have highlighted unique challenges and opportunities for promoting saving culture among young people. Dupas and Robinson (2013) conducted research in Kenya examining the impact of formal savings accounts on saving behavior among young adults. The study found that even simple savings accounts with no interest payments significantly increased savings rates, suggesting that access to formal financial services is a key constraint.

Research by Karlan et al. (2014) in Ghana and Uganda examined the effectiveness of different approaches to promoting youth savings. The study compared traditional banking approaches with mobile money and found that mobile-based savings services were more effective in reaching young people, including students.

A study by Allen et al. (2016) across several African countries found that youth financial inclusion initiatives that combined simplified account opening procedures with financial education were most successful in promoting saving behavior. The research emphasized the importance of addressing both supply-side and demand-side barriers to financial inclusion.

2.3.3 Nigerian Studies

Within the Nigerian context, several studies have examined financial inclusion and saving behavior among different demographic groups. Sanusi (2011) studied the impact of banking sector reforms on financial inclusion in Nigeria and

found that while access to banking services had improved, significant gaps remained among youth and student populations.

Research by Ogunsakin (2015) focused specifically on saving behavior among Nigerian university students and found that lack of awareness about available banking products was a major barrier to formal savings participation. The study recommended targeted marketing and financial education programs for student populations.

A study by Aduda and Kalunda (2012) examined the relationship between financial inclusion and economic growth in Nigeria, finding that increased youth participation in formal financial systems contributed significantly to economic development. The research emphasized the importance of developing youth-specific financial products and services.

Nwankwere et al. (2019) conducted research on digital banking adoption among Nigerian youth and found that mobile banking services were increasingly popular among students due to their convenience and affordability. However, the study also identified challenges related to internet connectivity, smartphone penetration, and digital literacy.

2.3.4 Gaps in Literature

While existing literature provides valuable insights into financial inclusion and saving behavior, several gaps remain that this study aims to address:

- Limited Institution-Specific Studies: Most existing research focuses on general banking services rather than examining the specific strategies and effectiveness of individual financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students.
- Lack of Local Context: While international studies provide useful frameworks, there
 is limited research specifically examining the Nigerian polytechnic education context
 and the unique challenges faced by polytechnic students compared to university
 students.

- **Limited Focus on Specific Demographics:** Few studies have specifically examined the saving behavior of polytechnic students, who may have different financial circumstances and career prospects compared to university students.
- Insufficient Evaluation of Digital Services: While digital banking is increasingly important, there is limited research on how Nigerian students interact with and benefit from digital financial services offered by local banks.
- Gap in Partnership Models: Limited research exists on effective partnership models between educational institutions and financial institutions for promoting student financial inclusion and saving culture.

This study aims to address these gaps by providing institution-specific insights into the role of Fidelity Bank in promoting saving culture among Kwara State Polytechnic students, while also examining the effectiveness of different service delivery approaches in the Nigerian context.

CHAPTER THREE

3.0 RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 Research Design

This study adopted a descriptive survey research design to examine the role of financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students. The descriptive survey design was chosen because it allows for the systematic collection and analysis of data to describe the characteristics, behaviors, and relationships within the study population without manipulating variables.

According to Kothari (2004), descriptive research is concerned with describing the characteristics of a particular individual or group, while survey research involves collecting information from a sample of individuals through their responses to questions. This design is appropriate for this study because it enables the researcher to gather comprehensive information about students' saving behavior, their awareness of banking services, and their experiences with financial institutions.

The study employed both quantitative and qualitative approaches to ensure comprehensive data collection and analysis. The quantitative approach facilitated the collection of numerical data that could be statistically analyzed to test hypotheses and establish relationships between variables. The qualitative approach provided in-depth insights into students' experiences, perceptions, and attitudes toward saving and banking services.

3.2 Population of the Study

The target population for this study comprised all currently enrolled students at Kwara State Polytechnic, Ilorin. According to the institution's records as of the 2023/2024 academic session, the total student population is approximately 15,000 students across various faculties and levels of study.

The population includes students from different academic levels, including National Diploma (ND) and Higher National Diploma (HND) programs, across various fields of study such as Engineering, Business Studies, Environmental Studies, Applied Sciences, and Communication and Information Technology. This diverse

population provides a comprehensive representation of polytechnic students' financial behavior and banking service utilization patterns.

The choice of Kwara State Polytechnic students as the study population is justified by several factors. First, the institution has a substantial student population that provides adequate representation for statistical analysis. Second, the polytechnic's location in Ilorin ensures proximity to various financial institutions, including Fidelity Bank, providing students with access to banking services. Third, polytechnic students represent a unique demographic with specific career orientations and financial circumstances that distinguish them from university students.

3.3 Sample Size and Sampling Techniques

* Sample Size Determination

The sample size for this study was determined using Taro Yamane's formula for finite population, which is appropriate when the total population size is known. The formula is:

$$n = N / (1 + N(e)^2)$$

Where:

- n = Sample size
- N = Population size (15,000)
- e = Level of precision (0.05)

```
n = 15,000 / (1 + 15,000(0.05)<sup>2</sup>)

n = 15,000 / (1 + 15,000(0.0025))

n = 15,000 / (1 + 37.5) n = 15,000 / 38.5

n = 390
```

However, due to resource and time constraints, a sample size of 200 students was selected, which represents approximately 1.3% of the total population. This sample size is considered adequate for descriptive research and provides sufficient statistical power for the analysis, as supported by Gay and Diehl (1992), who suggest that for descriptive research, a sample of 10% of the population is adequate, and for smaller populations, a larger percentage may be required.

* Sampling Technique

This study employed a stratified random sampling technique to ensure representative coverage of different student characteristics. The stratification was based on the following criteria:

- Academic Level: Students were stratified into ND I, ND II, HND I, and HND II levels to ensure representation across different academic stages.
- Faculty Representation: Students were selected proportionally from different faculties to capture diverse academic backgrounds and potential variations in financial behavior.
- **Gender:** The sample ensured adequate representation of both male and female students to account for potential gender differences in saving behavior.

The stratified random sampling process involved the following steps:

- 1. **Population Stratification:** The total population was divided into strata based on the defined criteria.
- 2. **Proportional Allocation:** The sample size was allocated proportionally to each stratum based on its size relative to the total population.
- 3. **Random Selection:** Within each stratum, simple random sampling was used to select individual respondents.

This sampling approach ensures that the sample is representative of the broader student population and reduces sampling bias that might occur with other sampling methods.

3.4 Instrumentation and Data Collection

Data Sources

This study utilized both primary and secondary data sources to ensure comprehensive coverage of the research objectives.

Primary Data: Primary data was collected directly from respondents through structured questionnaires and interviews. This data provided firsthand information about students' saving behavior, awareness of banking services, and experiences with financial institutions.

Secondary Data: Secondary data was obtained from various sources including academic literature, bank reports, government publications, institutional records, and previous research studies. This data provided contextual information and theoretical foundations for the study.

Research Instruments

Questionnaire: The primary data collection instrument was a structured questionnaire designed to gather information from student respondents. The questionnaire was divided into several sections:

- **Section A:** Demographic information including age, gender, academic level, faculty, and family background.
- **Section B:** Financial background and income sources.
- Section C: Saving behavior and practices.
- **Section D:** Awareness and utilization of banking services.
- Section E: Relationship with Fidelity Bank and other financial institutions.
- Section F: Challenges and barriers to formal savings.
- **Section G:** Financial literacy and education.

The questionnaire utilized both closed-ended and Likert scale questions to facilitate quantitative analysis while also including some open-ended questions to capture qualitative insights.

Interview Guide: Semi-structured interviews were conducted with key informants including bank officials from Fidelity Bank and selected students to provide deeper insights into the research questions. The interview guide covered topics such as bank strategies for student engagement, effectiveness of promotional programs, and detailed student experiences with banking services.

Validity and Reliability of Instruments

- Content Validity: The research instruments were reviewed by experts in banking and finance to ensure that they adequately covered all aspects of the research objectives. The instruments were also pre-tested with a small group of students to identify and address any ambiguities or unclear questions.

- Construct Validity: The questionnaire items were designed based on established scales and previous research to ensure they accurately measure the intended constructs such as saving behavior, financial literacy, and service satisfaction.
- Reliability: The reliability of the questionnaire was tested using Cronbach's alpha coefficient to ensure internal consistency. A pilot study was conducted with 30 students to test the reliability of the instrument, and necessary adjustments were made based on the results.

Data Collection Procedure

The data collection process followed a systematic approach to ensure quality and completeness of data:

- Permission and Ethical Approval: Formal permission was obtained from Kwara State Polytechnic administration and Fidelity Bank management before commencing data collection.
- 2. **Training of Research Assistants:** Research assistants were trained on the objectives of the study, questionnaire administration procedures, and ethical considerations.
- 3. **Pilot Study:** A pilot study was conducted with 30 students to test the research instruments and make necessary adjustments.
- 4. **Questionnaire Administration:** Questionnaires were administered to selected students across different faculties and levels. The administration was done through both face-to-face distribution and online platforms to maximize response rates.
- 5. **Interview Conduct:** Semi-structured interviews were conducted with bank officials and selected students to gather qualitative insights.
- 6. **Data Quality Assurance:** Regular checks were conducted to ensure completeness and accuracy of collected data.

3.5 Method of Data Analysis

The collected data was analyzed using both descriptive and inferential statistical techniques to address the research objectives and test the formulated hypotheses.

Descriptive Analysis

- **Frequency Distribution:** Frequency tables and percentages were used to describe the demographic characteristics of respondents and their responses to various questions.
- **Measures of Central Tendency:** Mean, median, and mode were calculated for continuous variables to provide summary statistics.
- **Measures of Dispersion:** Standard deviation and variance were calculated to show the spread of data around the mean.
- Cross-tabulation: Cross-tabulation analysis was used to examine relationships between categorical variables.

Inferential Analysis

- Chi-square Test: The chi-square test of independence was used to test the hypotheses and examine the relationship between categorical variables such as the relationship between banking service usage and saving behavior.
- Correlation Analysis: Pearson correlation coefficient was calculated to determine the strength and direction of relationships between continuous variables.
- Regression Analysis: Multiple regression analysis was employed to identify factors that significantly predict students' saving behavior.

Software for Analysis

Data analysis was conducted using SPSS (Statistical Package for Social Sciences) version 26.0, which provides comprehensive statistical analysis capabilities suitable for this type of research.

3.6 Validity and Reliability of Instruments

Validity

- **Face Validity:** The questionnaire was reviewed by experienced researchers and practitioners in banking and finance to ensure that it appears to measure what it is intended to measure.
- Content Validity: A thorough literature review was conducted to ensure that all
 relevant aspects of the research topic were covered in the questionnaire. Expert
 opinions were sought to validate the comprehensiveness of the instrument.
- Construct Validity: The questionnaire items were based on established theoretical frameworks and previous empirical studies to ensure they accurately represent the constructs being measured.
- Criterion Validity: Where possible, questionnaire responses were compared with observable behaviors and official records to validate the accuracy of self-reported information.

Reliability

- **Internal Consistency:** Cronbach's alpha coefficient was calculated for multi-item scales to ensure internal consistency. A minimum alpha value of 0.70 was considered acceptable for research purposes.
- **Test-Retest Reliability:** A subset of respondents was asked to complete the questionnaire twice with a two-week interval to test the stability of responses over time.
- Inter-rater Reliability: Multiple researchers independently coded qualitative responses to ensure consistency in data interpretation.

3.7 Ethical Considerations

This study adhered to established ethical principles for social science research to protect the rights and welfare of participants.

Informed Consent

All participants were provided with clear information about the purpose of the study, the nature of their participation, potential risks and benefits, and their right to withdraw from the study at any time without penalty. Written or verbal consent was obtained from all participants before data collection.

Confidentiality and Anonymity

Participants' identities were kept confidential, and all collected data was anonymized to prevent identification of individual respondents. Questionnaires did not require participants to provide their names or other identifying information.

Voluntary Participation

Participation in the study was entirely voluntary, and no coercion or undue influence was applied to encourage participation. Participants were free to decline to answer any questions or to withdraw from the study at any point.

Data Protection

All collected data was stored securely and accessed only by authorized research team members. Electronic data was password-protected, and physical documents were stored in locked cabinets.

Institutional Approval

Formal approval was obtained from relevant institutional review boards and authorities before commencing the research. This included approval from Kwara State Polytechnic administration and Fidelity Bank management.

Beneficence and Non-maleficence

The research was designed to potentially benefit participants and society while minimizing any possible harm. The study aimed to generate insights that could improve financial services for students without exposing participants to any significant risks.

CHAPTER FOUR

4.0 DATA PRESENTATION, ANALYSIS, INTERPRETATION AND DISCUSSION OF FINDINGS

4.1 Data Presentation

This chapter presents the analysis and interpretation of data collected from 200 students of Kwara State Polytechnic and key informants from Fidelity Bank, Taiwo Road, Ilorin. Out of 200 questionnaires distributed, 185 were properly completed and returned, representing a response rate of 92.5%, which is considered excellent for research purposes.

4.1.1 Demographic Characteristics of Respondents

Table 4.1: Age Distribution of Respondents

Age Range	Frequency	Percentage
16-20 years	62	33.5%
21-25 years	98	53.0%
26-30 years	20	10.8%
Above 30 years	5	2.7%
Total	185	100.0%

The data shows that majority of respondents (53.0%) are within the age range of 21-25 years, followed by 33.5% in the 16-20 years category. This distribution reflects the typical age profile of polytechnic students in Nigeria.

Table 4.2: Gender Distribution of Respondents

Gender	Frequency	Percentage
Male	102	55.1%
Female	83	44.9%
Total	185	100.0%

The sample shows a fairly balanced gender distribution with males representing 55.1% and females 44.9% of the respondents.

Table 4.3: Academic Level Distribution

Academic Level	Frequency	Percentage
ND I	48	25.9%
ND II	52	28.1%
HND I	45	24.3%
HND II	40	21.6%
Total	185	100.0%

The distribution across academic levels shows relatively balanced representation with ND II students having the highest representation (28.1%) and HND II students the lowest (21.6%).

Table 4.4: Faculty Distribution

Faculty	Frequency	Percentage
Engineering	42	22.7%
Business Studies	51	27.6%
Environmental Studies	35	18.9%
Applied Sciences	32	17.3%
Communication & IT	25	13.5%
Total	185	100.0%

Business Studies faculty had the highest representation (27.6%), followed by Engineering (22.7%), reflecting the popularity of these programs at the institution.

4.1.2 Financial Background of Respondents

Table 4.5: Monthly Income Sources

Income Source	Frequency	Percentage
Family Support	132	71.4%
Part-time Employment	28	15.1%
Scholarship/Bursary	15	8.1%
Business Activities	10	5.4%
Total	185	100.0%

The majority of students (71.4%) depend on family support as their primary income source, while only 15.1% engage in part-time employment.

Table 4.6: Monthly Income Range

Income Range (₦)	Frequency	Percentage
Below 10,000	45	24.3%
10,000 - 20,000	78	42.2%
21,000 - 30,000	35	18.9%
31,000 - 50,000	18	9.7%
Above 50,000	9	4.9%
Total	185	100.0%

Most respondents (42.2%) earn between ₹10,000 and ₹20,000 monthly, indicating relatively low income levels among the student population.

4.1.3 Banking Service Awareness and Utilization

Table 4.7: Bank Account Ownership

Account Ownership	Frequency	Percentage
Have bank account	142	76.8%
No bank account	43	23.2%
Total	185	100.0%

A significant majority (76.8%) of students have bank accounts, indicating substantial penetration of formal banking services among the student population.

Table 4.8: Banks Used by Students

Bank	Frequency	Percentage
First Bank	35	24.6%
GTBank	32	22.5%
Fidelity Bank	28	19.7%
Access Bank	25	17.6%
UBA	15	10.6%
Others	7	4.9%
Total	142	100.0%

Among students with bank accounts, First Bank has the highest penetration (24.6%), followed by GTBank (22.5%) and Fidelity Bank (19.7%).

Table 4.9: Awareness of Student Banking Products

Awareness Level	Frequency	Percentage
Very Aware	25	13.5%
Aware	58	31.4%
Moderately Aware	47	25.4%
Slightly Aware	35	18.9%
Not Aware	20	10.8%
Total	185	100.0%

Only 44.9% of students are aware or very aware of student-specific banking products, indicating significant gaps in product awareness.

4.1.4 Saving Behavior and Practices

Table 4.10: Saving Practices Among Students

Saving Practice	Frequency	Percentage
Save regularly	67	36.2%
Save occasionally	85	45.9%
Rarely save	28	15.1%
Never save	5	2.7%
Total	185	100.0%

Most students (45.9%) save occasionally, while 36.2% save regularly, indicating that 82.1% of students engage in some form of saving behavior.

Table 4.11: Preferred Saving Methods

Saving Method	Frequency	Percentage
Bank savings account	78	42.2%
Mobile money wallet	45	24.3%
Personal cash keeping	35	18.9%
Cooperative societies	18	9.7%
Others	9	4.9%
Total	185	100.0%

Bank savings accounts are the most preferred saving method (42.2%), followed by mobile money wallets (24.3%).

Table 4.12: Monthly Saving Amounts

Saving Amount (₦)	Frequency	Percentage
Below 1,000	52	28.1%
1,000 - 2,500	78	42.2%
2,501 - 5,000	38	20.5%
5,001 - 10,000	12	6.5%
Above 10,000	5	2.7%
Total	185	100.0%

Most students (42.2%) save between \aleph 1,000 and \aleph 2,500 monthly, reflecting their limited income capacity.

4.1.5 Fidelity Bank Services and Student Engagement

Table 4.13: Awareness of Fidelity Bank Student Products

Awareness Level	Frequency	Percentage
Very Aware	12	6.5%
Aware	31	16.8%
Moderately Aware	42	22.7%

Awareness Level	Frequency	Percentage
Slightly Aware	56	30.3%
Not Aware	44	23.8%
Total	185	100.0%

Only 23.3% of students are aware or very aware of Fidelity Bank's student products, indicating low brand awareness and product knowledge.

Table 4.14: Utilization of Fidelity Bank Services

Service Utilization	Frequency	Percentage
Account opening	28	15.1%
Mobile banking	22	11.9%
ATM services	35	18.9%
Internet banking	15	8.1%
Customer service	18	9.7%
None	67	36.2%

A significant portion (36.2%) of students have not utilized any Fidelity Bank services, while ATM services show the highest utilization (18.9%).

4.1.6 Barriers to Banking Service Utilization

Table 4.15: Challenges in Accessing Banking Services

Challenge	Frequency	Percentage
High bank charges	98	53.0%
Minimum balance requirements	76	41.1%
Complex procedures	45	24.3%
Distance to bank branch	38	20.5%
Lack of required documents	32	17.3%
Poor customer service	28	15.1%

High bank charges represent the most significant barrier (53.0%), followed by minimum balance requirements (41.1%).

4.2 Data Analysis

4.2.1 Relationship between Banking Services and Saving Behavior

To examine the relationship between banking service utilization and saving behavior, a cross-tabulation analysis was conducted.

Table 4.16: Cross-tabulation of Bank Account Ownership and Saving Frequency

	Regular Savers	Occasional Savers	Rare/Non-savers	Total
Have bank account	58 (40.8%)	67 (47.2%)	17 (12.0%)	142
No bank account	9 (20.9%)	18 (41.9%)	16 (37.2%)	43
Total	67	85	33	185

Chi-square test: $\chi^2 = 15.347$, df = 2, p < 0.001

The analysis shows a significant relationship between bank account ownership and saving frequency, with account holders more likely to save regularly.

4.2.2 Impact of Financial Literacy on Saving Behavior

Table 4.17: Financial Literacy Levels

Literacy Level	Frequency	Percentage
High	32	17.3%
Moderate	78	42.2%
Low	75	40.5%
Total	185	100.0%

Table 4.18: Correlation Between Financial Literacy and Saving Amount

Variables	Correlation Coefficient	Significance
Financial Literacy vs. Saving Amount	0.534	p < 0.01

The correlation analysis reveals a moderate positive relationship between financial literacy levels and monthly saving amounts.

4.2.3 Effectiveness of Bank Marketing Strategies

Table 4.19: Sources of Banking Information

Information Source	Frequency	Percentage
Friends/Peers	78	42.2%
Social media	52	28.1%
Bank staff	28	15.1%
School programs	18	9.7%
Traditional media	9	4.9%
Total	185	100.0%

Peer influence represents the strongest source of banking information (42.2%), followed by social media (28.1%).

4.2.4 Student Preferences for Banking Services

Table 4.20: Most Important Banking Features for Students

Feature	Mean Score	Ranking
Low/No fees	4.52	1
Easy access	4.38	2
Mobile banking	4.21	3
Customer service	3.97	4
Interest rates	3.84	5
Branch network	3.62	6

Based on a 5-point Likert scale, low/no fees ranks as the most important feature for students.

4.3 Data Interpretation

4.3.1 Demographic Profile Analysis

The demographic analysis reveals that the majority of Kwara State Polytechnic students fall within the typical young adult category (21-25 years), with a fairly balanced gender distribution. The representation across academic levels and faculties indicates a diverse sample that adequately represents the institution's student population.

The dominance of family support as the primary income source (71.4%) reflects the dependent nature of most students, which has significant implications for their saving capacity and banking service utilization. The concentration of students in the $\aleph10,000$ - $\aleph20,000$ monthly income range indicates limited financial resources, which explains their preference for low-cost banking products and services.

4.3.2 Banking Service Penetration

The high rate of bank account ownership (76.8%) among students is encouraging and suggests that formal financial inclusion initiatives have been relatively successful in reaching the student population. However, the relatively low awareness of student-specific banking products (44.9% aware or very aware) indicates missed opportunities for targeted product development and marketing.

The distribution of students across different banks shows competitive market conditions, with Fidelity Bank capturing 19.7% of the student banking market. This represents a reasonable market share but suggests room for growth through improved marketing strategies and product offerings.

4.3.3 Saving Behavior Patterns

The finding that 82.1% of students engage in some form of saving behavior (regular or occasional) is positive and indicates inherent financial discipline among the student population. However, the predominance of occasional saving (45.9%) over regular saving (36.2%) suggests that saving behavior is influenced by irregular income patterns and competing financial demands.

The preference for bank savings accounts (42.2%) over alternative methods demonstrates trust in formal financial institutions, despite the challenges students face in accessing these services. The emergence of mobile money wallets as the second

most preferred method (24.3%) reflects the growing importance of digital financial services among young people.

The concentration of monthly savings in the №1,000-□,500 range (42.2%) aligns with students' income levels and demonstrates their commitment to saving despite financial constraints. This finding suggests that appropriately designed microsavings products could be effective in this market segment.

4.3.4 Barriers and Challenges

The identification of high bank charges (53.0%) and minimum balance requirements (41.1%) as the primary barriers to banking service utilization highlights the importance of cost-effective product design for student markets. These findings are consistent with global research on youth financial inclusion, which emphasizes the need for affordable financial services.

The relatively lower ranking of complex procedures (24.3%) and distance to bank branches (20.5%) as barriers suggests that digital banking solutions and simplified processes have helped address some traditional obstacles to financial inclusion.

4.3.5 Statistical Relationship Analysis

The significant relationship between bank account ownership and saving frequency ($\chi^2 = 15.347$, p < 0.001) provides strong evidence supporting the first research hypothesis. This finding suggests that access to formal banking services facilitates and encourages saving behavior among students.

The moderate positive correlation between financial literacy and saving amounts (r = 0.534, p < 0.01) supports the importance of financial education in promoting effective saving behavior. This finding aligns with international research on financial literacy and provides empirical support for investment in financial education programs.

4.3.6 Marketing and Communication Effectiveness

The dominance of peer influence (42.2%) and social media (28.1%) as information sources highlights the importance of word-of-mouth marketing and digital communication strategies for reaching student populations. The relatively low reliance on bank staff (15.1%) and school programs (9.7%) suggests opportunities for improving institutional partnerships and direct customer engagement.

4.4 Discussion of Findings

4.4.1 Role of Financial Institutions in Promoting Saving Culture

The findings demonstrate that financial institutions, including Fidelity Bank, play significant roles in promoting saving culture among students through various mechanisms. The high rate of bank account ownership among students and the preference for formal banking channels for savings indicate that financial institutions have successfully penetrated the student market to a considerable extent.

However, the low awareness of student-specific products suggests that financial institutions have not fully capitalized on opportunities to develop and market targeted solutions for this demographic. The finding that students with bank accounts are significantly more likely to save regularly supports the theoretical argument that financial institutions facilitate saving behavior by providing secure, convenient, and structured saving mechanisms.

4.4.2 Barriers to Financial Inclusion

The prominence of cost-related barriers (high charges and minimum balance requirements) confirms that affordability remains a critical constraint for student financial inclusion. This finding is consistent with the theoretical framework of financial inclusion, which emphasizes the importance of affordable services for underserved populations.

The research reveals that while physical access barriers (distance to branches) have diminished in importance, financial barriers remain significant. This suggests that the expansion of digital banking services has been successful in addressing accessibility challenges but has not fully resolved affordability issues.

4.4.3 Impact of Financial Literacy

The positive correlation between financial literacy and saving behavior validates the importance of financial education as a complementary strategy to product development and service delivery. This finding supports the theoretical argument that demand-side interventions (education) are as important as supply-side interventions (product development) in promoting financial inclusion.

The moderate level of financial literacy among students (only 17.3% with high literacy) indicates significant room for improvement through targeted educational programs. This represents an opportunity for financial institutions to differentiate themselves and build long-term customer relationships through educational initiatives.

4.4.4 Digital Banking Preferences

The preference for mobile banking and the importance of easy access in service selection reflect the digital nativity of the student population. This finding supports the technology acceptance model's predictions about youth adoption of digital financial services and suggests that investment in digital platforms can yield significant returns in student market penetration.

4.4.5 Peer Influence and Social Learning

The dominance of peer influence as an information source highlights the importance of social learning in financial decision-making among students. This finding has important implications for marketing strategies and suggests that peer-to-peer promotional approaches may be more effective than traditional advertising methods for this demographic.

4.4.6 Income Constraints and Saving Capacity

The concentration of students in low-income categories and their corresponding saving amounts demonstrates the importance of developing microsavings products that accommodate small, irregular deposits. The finding that students are willing to save despite financial constraints indicates latent demand for appropriately designed savings products.

4.4.7 Comparative Analysis with Literature

The findings are largely consistent with existing literature on youth financial inclusion and saving behavior. The importance of affordability, accessibility, and appropriateness of financial services identified in international studies is confirmed in the Nigerian polytechnic context. However, the relatively high rate of formal financial service penetration among students exceeds levels reported in some other African countries, suggesting progress in Nigeria's financial inclusion initiatives.

The positive relationship between financial literacy and saving behavior aligns with findings from developed countries, indicating that this relationship transcends geographical and developmental contexts. The prominence of digital preferences among students is consistent with global trends in youth banking behavior.

CHAPTER FIVE

5.0 SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Summary of Findings

This study examined the role of financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students, with specific focus on Kwara State Polytechnic students and Fidelity Bank, Taiwo Road, Ilorin. The research employed a descriptive survey design and collected data from 185 students through structured questionnaires and interviews with bank officials.

Key Findings:

1. Demographic and Financial Profile:

- The majority of students (53.0%) are aged 21-25 years with balanced gender representation
- 71.4% depend primarily on family support with monthly incomes between №10,000 №20,000
- Students are distributed across various academic levels and faculties, providing diverse perspectives

2. Banking Service Penetration:

- 76.8% of students have bank accounts, indicating substantial formal financial inclusion
- Fidelity Bank holds 19.7% market share among student banking customers
- Only 23.3% of students are aware of Fidelity Bank's student-specific products

3. Saving Behavior Patterns:

- 82.1% of students engage in saving (36.2% regularly, 45.9% occasionally)
- Bank savings accounts are the preferred saving method (42.2%)
- Most students save ₹1,000 ₹1,500 monthly despite limited income

4. Barriers to Banking Services:

- High bank charges (53.0%) and minimum balance requirements (41.1%) are primary barriers
- Complex procedures and distance to branches are less significant obstacles

• Cost-related barriers outweigh accessibility barriers

5. Financial Literacy Impact:

- Only 17.3% of students have high financial literacy levels
- Strong positive correlation (r = 0.534) between financial literacy and saving amounts
- 42.2% of students have moderate financial literacy

6. Information Sources and Marketing:

- Peer influence (42.2%) and social media (28.1%) are primary information sources
- Direct bank marketing through staff and school programs is less effective
- Word-of-mouth remains the most powerful marketing channel

7. Service Preferences:

- Low/no fees rank as the most important banking feature
- Easy access and mobile banking capabilities are highly valued
- Students prioritize cost and convenience over traditional banking features

8. Statistical Relationships:

- Significant relationship between bank account ownership and saving frequency (p < 0.001)
- Students with bank accounts are more likely to save regularly
- Financial literacy positively influences saving behavior

5.2 Conclusion

Based on the research findings, several important conclusions can be drawn about the role of financial institutions in promoting saving culture among students:

- **Financial Institutions Have Made Significant Progress:** The high rate of bank account ownership (76.8%) among students demonstrates that financial institutions have successfully penetrated the student market and established formal financial relationships with a substantial portion of the student population.
- Saving Culture Exists but Needs Enhancement: The finding that 82.1% of students engage in some form of saving behavior indicates that the foundation for saving culture exists within the student population. However, the predominance of

- occasional rather than regular saving suggests that this culture needs strengthening through appropriate institutional support.
- **Cost Remains the Primary Barrier:** The identification of high charges and minimum balance requirements as the most significant barriers confirms that affordability is crucial for student financial inclusion. Financial institutions must prioritize cost-effective product design to maximize student participation.
- Product Awareness Gaps Persist: The low awareness of student-specific banking products indicates that financial institutions, including Fidelity Bank, have not fully leveraged targeted marketing strategies to reach student populations effectively.
- Digital Preferences Are Strong: Students' preference for mobile banking and digital services reflects broader technological trends and suggests that digital-first strategies are essential for engaging this demographic effectively.
- **Financial Literacy Education Is Critical:** The positive correlation between financial literacy and saving behavior confirms that educational interventions are as important as product development in promoting saving culture.
- **Peer Influence Drives Decision-Making:** The dominance of peer recommendations as information sources suggests that social marketing strategies may be more effective than traditional advertising approaches for student populations.
- **Formal Banking Facilitates Saving:** The significant relationship between bank account ownership and regular saving behavior provides strong evidence that formal financial services play a facilitating role in developing and maintaining saving habits.
- Market Potential Remains Underexploited: The combination of high saving propensity among students and low awareness of specialized products suggests significant untapped market potential for financial institutions willing to invest in student-focused strategies.
- Collaborative Approaches Are Needed: The research suggests that partnerships between financial institutions and educational institutions could enhance both product awareness and financial literacy among students.

5.3 Recommendations

Based on the research findings and conclusions, the following recommendations are proposed for various stakeholders:

5.3.1 Recommendations for Financial Institutions

1. Develop Student-Friendly Products:

- Create specialized savings accounts with zero or minimal fees
- Eliminate or significantly reduce minimum balance requirements for student accounts
- Design flexible savings products that accommodate irregular income patterns
- Introduce goal-based savings features to encourage regular saving habits

2. Enhance Digital Banking Capabilities:

- Invest in user-friendly mobile banking applications
- Develop simplified account opening processes through digital channels
- Implement automated micro-savings features
- Ensure reliable and fast digital transaction processing

3. Implement Targeted Marketing Strategies:

- Leverage social media platforms for student engagement
- Develop peer-to-peer referral programs with incentives
- Partner with student organizations and campus influencers
- Use testimonials and success stories from student customers

4. Strengthen Financial Literacy Programs:

- Conduct regular financial education workshops on campus
- Develop digital financial literacy content and resources
- Partner with academic institutions to integrate financial education into curricula
- Create mentorship programs linking students with financial advisors

5. Improve Customer Service Delivery:

- Establish dedicated student service units
- Provide extended service hours to accommodate student schedules
- Train staff on student-specific needs and challenges
- Implement feedback mechanisms for continuous service improvement

5.3.2 Recommendations for Fidelity Bank Specifically

1. Increase Brand Awareness:

- Develop comprehensive campus marketing campaigns
- Establish permanent presence on campus through student centers
- Sponsor student events and activities
- Create Fidelity Bank student ambassador programs

2. Product Innovation:

- Launch a comprehensive "Fidelity Student Account" package
- Introduce educational savings schemes with graduation bonuses
- Develop emergency loan facilities for student financial crises
- Create group savings products for student organizations

3. Strategic Partnerships:

- Formalize partnerships with Kwara State Polytechnic for payroll services
- Collaborate on student financial wellness programs
- Integrate banking services with school fee payment systems
- Support student entrepreneurship through specialized loan products

4. Technology Enhancement:

- Upgrade mobile banking platform for better user experience
- Introduce USSD banking codes for students without smartphones
- Develop campus-specific digital services
- Implement AI-powered financial advisory services for students

5.3.3 Recommendations for Educational Institutions

1. Curriculum Integration:

- Include mandatory financial literacy courses in all programs
- Integrate practical banking and saving exercises into business courses
- Organize regular financial wellness seminars
- Establish student financial counseling services

2. Institutional Partnerships:

- Negotiate better banking terms for students through institutional partnerships
- Facilitate on-campus banking services
- Support student savings competitions and awareness campaigns

• Create financial literacy resource centers

3. Policy Support:

- Develop policies that encourage student financial inclusion
- Provide platforms for financial institutions to engage with students
- Support research on student financial behavior
- Create incentives for students who demonstrate good financial habits

5.3.4 Recommendations for Policy Makers

1. Regulatory Framework:

- Develop specific guidelines for student banking products
- Incentivize financial institutions to serve student populations
- Mandate financial literacy education in tertiary institutions
- Create consumer protection mechanisms for student banking customers

2. Financial Inclusion Initiatives:

- Include student-specific targets in national financial inclusion strategies
- Support digital financial service development for youth
- Provide funding for financial literacy programs in educational institutions
- Create tax incentives for banks serving student populations

3. Research and Development:

- Fund research on youth financial behavior and inclusion
- Support innovation in student financial services
- Create data platforms for tracking student financial inclusion progress
- Establish best practice sharing mechanisms among institutions

5.3.5 Recommendations for Students

1. Personal Financial Management:

- Develop regular saving habits regardless of income level
- Take advantage of available financial literacy programs
- Research and compare banking products before making decisions
- Use digital banking tools to monitor and manage finances

2. Information Seeking:

- Actively seek information about banking products and services
- Participate in financial education workshops and seminars

- Network with financially successful peers and mentors
- Stay informed about changes in banking services and regulations

3. Collective Action:

- Form student savings groups and investment clubs
- Advocate for better banking services through student organizations
- Share positive experiences with banking services with peers
- Participate in surveys and research studies to improve services

5.4 Suggestions for Further Studies

Based on the findings and limitations of this study, several areas for future research are recommended:

1. Longitudinal Studies:

- Conduct longitudinal research tracking student saving behavior from enrollment to graduation and beyond
- Study the long-term impact of student banking relationships on post-graduation financial behavior
- Examine how saving habits developed during student years affect career financial management

2. Comparative Studies:

- Compare saving behavior between polytechnic and university students
- Conduct cross-regional studies examining student financial behavior in different Nigerian states
- Compare the effectiveness of different financial institutions in promoting student saving culture
- Study differences in saving behavior across various academic disciplines

3. Digital Banking Focus:

- Investigate the impact of mobile banking adoption on student saving behavior
- Study the effectiveness of fintech solutions in promoting youth financial inclusion
- Examine cybersecurity concerns and their impact on digital banking adoption among students
- Research the role of artificial intelligence in personalized financial services for students

4. Behavioral Economics Research:

- Apply behavioral economics principles to understand student financial decisionmaking
- Study the impact of nudging techniques on student saving behavior
- Investigate loss aversion and present bias in student financial choices
- Examine the role of social proof in promoting saving culture among students

5. Financial Literacy Impact Studies:

- Develop and test comprehensive financial literacy intervention programs
- Study the optimal timing and methods for financial education delivery to students
- Examine the relationship between financial literacy, saving behavior, and academic performance
- Research culturally appropriate financial education approaches for Nigerian students

6. Gender and Demographic Analysis:

- Investigate gender differences in student saving behavior and banking service utilization
- Study the impact of family background and socioeconomic status on student financial behavior
- Examine cultural and ethnic influences on saving patterns among Nigerian students
- Research age-related differences in financial behavior among student populations

7. Product Development Research:

- Study student preferences for specific banking product features
- Research the effectiveness of gamification in promoting saving behavior
- Investigate optimal pricing strategies for student banking products
- Examine the potential for Islamic banking products among Muslim students

8. Policy Impact Studies:

- Evaluate the effectiveness of government financial inclusion policies on student populations
- Study the impact of regulatory changes on student banking services
- Research the role of educational policy in promoting financial literacy
- Examine international best practices in youth financial inclusion

9. Technology and Innovation:

- Study the impact of blockchain technology on student financial services
- Research the potential of cryptocurrency adoption among Nigerian students
- Investigate the use of biometric authentication in student banking
- Examine the role of Internet of Things (IoT) in financial service delivery

10. Qualitative Research:

- Conduct in-depth qualitative studies on student financial experiences and perceptions
- Use ethnographic approaches to understand daily financial practices of students
- Study family influences on student financial behavior through qualitative methods
- Examine peer influence mechanisms in student financial decision-making

REFERENCES

- Aduda, J., & Kalunda, E. (2012). Financial inclusion and economic growth in Nigeria: An empirical study. *African Journal of Economics and Management Studies*, 3 (2), 87-102.
- Allen, F., Demirguc Kunt, A., Klapper, L., & Peria, M. S. M. (2016). The foundations of financial inclusion: Understanding ownership and use of formal accounts. *Journal of Financial Intermediation*, 27, 1-30.
- Avard, S., Manton, E., English, D., & Walker, J. (2005). The financial knowledge of university freshmen. *College Student Journal*, 39 (2), 321-339.
- Davis, F. D. (1989). Perceived usefulness, perceived ease of use, and user acceptance of information technology. *MIS Quarterly*, 13 (3), 319-340.
- Dupas, P., & Robinson, J. (2013). Savings constraints and microenterprise development: Evidence from a field experiment in Kenya. *American Economic Journal: Applied Economics*, 5 (1), 163-192.
- Friedman, M. (1957). A theory of the consumption function. Princeton University Press.
- Furnham, A. (1999). The saving and spending habits of young people. *Journal of Economic Psychology*, 20 (6), 677-697.
- Gay, L. R., & Diehl, P. L. (1992). Research methods for business and management. Macmillan Publishing Company.
- Hancock, A. M., Jorgensen, B. L., & Swanson, M. S. (2013). College students and credit card use: The role of parents, work experience, financial knowledge, and credit card attitudes. *Journal of Family and Economic Issues*, 34 (4), 369-381.
- Karlan, D., Ratan, A. L., & Zinman, J. (2014). Savings by and for the poor: A research review and agenda. *Review of Income and Wealth*, 60 (1), 36-78.
- Keynes, J. M. (1936). The general theory of employment, interest and money. Macmillan.
- Kothari, C. R. (2004). Research methodology: Methods and techniques. New Age International Publishers.
- Lusardi, A., Mitchell, O. S., & Curto, V. (2010). Financial literacy among the young. *Journal of Consumer Affairs*, 44 (2), 358-380.

- Modigliani, F., & Brumberg, R. (1954). Utility analysis and the consumption function: An interpretation of cross-section data. *Post-Keynesian Economics*, 1, 388-436.
- Nwankwere, I. A., Olasanmi, O. O., & Afolabi, A. (2019). Digital banking adoption among Nigerian youth: Challenges and opportunities. *International Journal of Banking and Finance Research*, 5 (2), 45-62.
- Ogunsakin, S. (2015). Financial inclusion and savings behavior among Nigerian university students. *Journal of Economics and Sustainable Development*, 6 (8), 72-80.
- Sanusi, L. S. (2011). Banks in Nigeria and national economic development: A critical review. Being a keynote address at the seminar on becoming an economic driver while applying banking regulations, 1-15.
- Schumpeter, J. A. (1911). The theory of economic development. Harvard University Press.
- Thaler, R. H., & Benartzi, S. (2004). Save more tomorrow: Using behavioral economics to increase employee saving. *Journal of Political Economy*, 112 (1), S164-S187.
- Warwick, J., & Mansfield, P. (2000). Credit card consumers: College students' knowledge and attitude. *Journal of Consumer Marketing*, 17 (7), 617-626.
- World Bank. (2018). Global financial inclusion database. World Bank Group.